Table of Contents

SECTION I: INTRODUCTION	4
Mission Statement	4
Student Success Statement	4
Equity	4
Diversity Statement	4
Institutional Learner Outcomes	5
SECTION II: FACULTY POLICIES AND PROCEDURES	6
Academic Freedom	6
Academic Professionalism	7
Intellectual Property Policy	7
Family Education Rights & Privacy Act (FERPA)	9
Faculty Handbook	9
General Faculty Structure	9
Faculty Workload	11
Faculty Overload Policy	12
Course Buyout	13
Faculty Working Hours	14
Personal/Annual and Sick Leave	15
Administrative Leave – Special Events	15
Part-Time Compensation Forms for Additional Contracts	16
Faculty Evaluation Procedures	16
Employment Agreements	16
Sabbatical Leave Policy	17
Faculty Qualifications Policy	19
Professional Development for Faculty	19
Faculty Onboarding	21
Academic Meetings	22
Career & Technical Education Certification	23
Library Materials	24

Commencement Ceremonies	24
Work Orders	24
Campus Parking for Faculty	24
Employee Identification Cards	24
Key Academic Committees	25
Student Clubs	25
SECTION III: INSTRUCTIONAL PROCEDURES	26
Academic Integrity	26
Cancelation of Classes	27
Student Code of Conduct	27
Classroom Behavior	27
JICS - My.UTTC.edu	27
Classroom Facilities	28
Student Attendance	28
Referring Students for Services	29
Disabilities Services	29
Counseling Services	29
Career Services	30
Tutoring Services	30
Breastfeeding	30
Internships and Apprenticeships	30
Assessment Reports	31
Course Syllabi	31
Textbooks and Supplemental Materials	32
Transcript Evaluations	32
Grading System and Grade Changes	32
Grading Consequences for Late Submission	33
Grading Processes and Feedback	34
Academic Contracts	35
Course Evaluations by Students	36

Final Exam Schedule	36
Independent Study	37
Contact Hours	37
Office Hours	38
Classroom Implications of the Privacy Act	38
Field Trips	38
Curricular Changes	39
Cell Phone Usage	39
Academic Advising & Registration	39
SECTION IV: ACADEMIC POLICIES	40
APPENDIX A: Faculty Salary Schedule (2024)	41

Welcome to United Tribes Technical College

You, as a faculty member, are critical to the success of United Tribes Technical College (UTTC). Student success at UTTC is the fundamental measure of institutional success and is inseparable from the classroom experiences guided by the faculty. Your commitment to students, the expectations you hold of them and the interest you take in them as individuals, makes a difference in their lives and distinguishes you and UTTC.

This handbook is designed to facilitate your success at UTTC. It should answer most of your questions regarding procedures that directly relate to you as a faculty member. Please use this handbook, the UTTC Employee Handbook, and the academic catalog as reference documents for information concerning employment and for a better understanding of your role within UTTC.

Suggestions for including information in this handbook are always welcome.

Lisa J. Azure, PhD

Vice President of Academic Affairs

SECTION I: INTRODUCTION

Mission Statement

United Tribes Technical College provides quality post-secondary education and training to enhance knowledge, diversity, and leadership for all indigenous nations.

Student Success Statement

Student success at UTTC extends beyond academic achievement to leadership development. Successful student leaders develop positive campus community relationships and display strong work habits, confidence, resilience, and belief in self.

Co-Curricular Learning Outcomes as reflected in the Student Success definition:

- Student leaders perceive themselves as contributing members of the campus community.
- 2. Student leaders are prepared to learn, regularly attend class, complete assignments on time, and demonstrate other *positive work habits* that contribute to achieving career pathway goals.
- 3. Student leaders are *confident and able to work through life challenges* through effective planning and prioritizing.
- 4. Student leaders *believe in their ability* to accomplish challenging tasks and that with effort, their ability can grow.

Equity

United Tribes Technical College (UTTC) believes that access to a high-quality education in an inclusive environment is the right of all individuals and imperative for the continued advancement of a strong democracy and workforce.

Equity is ensuring that all students receive what they need to be successful through the intentional design of the college experience.

Diversity Statement

United Tribes Technical College values diversity because it enriches the community and wealth of experiences that characterize a post-secondary education. Our students, faculty, and staff come from Tribal lands throughout the United States and Canada. The majority of

our students come from the northern plains region of the country, with 70% representing the North Dakota tribes.

UTTC recognizes that diversity is about much more than race, ethnicity or geography. Because students from many Tribal nations are represented at UTTC, from a wide range of cultural and ethnic backgrounds, students are encouraged to share their own cultural practices, traditions and beliefs in the classroom in an effort to build an inclusive and welcoming community for all individuals and one from which we can learn from one another. We believe engagement with diverse perspectives and ideas is critical to the education and growth of all people, and we value the unique experiences and viewpoints of all of our community members.

Institutional Learner Outcomes

The institutional learner outcomes are intended to ensure students have experiences that develop the abilities to communicate, problem solve, think critically and value diversity as citizens in a global society. The institutional learner outcomes are the foundation of learning that enable students to further their education, advance in their careers and develop within them an ability to be critical thinkers. In addition to mastering the content of college courses, students need opportunities to develop the ability to apply what they learn. Students are expected to have met these outcomes upon completion of their educational experience at UTTC.

The UTTC faculty members identified four student learner outcome statements that are used to measure student learning across all courses. These outcome statements, and the performance indicators for each, are embedded in all course syllabi for general education and program-specific courses. The four institutional learner outcomes identify levels of proficiency in the areas listed below:

- 1. Communication
- 2. Critical thinking
- 3. Quantitative reasoning
- 4. Personal and social responsibility

SECTION II: FACULTY POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

Academic Freedom

What is academic freedom?

Academic freedom is the freedom of a teacher in higher education to investigate and discuss the issues in his or her academic field, and to teach without interference from administrators, boards of trustees, political figures, donors, or other entities. Academic freedom also protects the right of a faculty member to speak freely when participating in institutional governance, as well as to speak freely as a citizen.

What are the main elements of academic freedom?

The academic freedom of faculty members consists of four interrelated elements:

- Teaching: freedom to discuss all relevant matters in the classroom.
- <u>Intramural speech</u>: freedom from institutional censorship or discipline when addressing matters of institutional policy or action.
- <u>Extramural speech</u>: freedom from institutional censorship or discipline when speaking or writing as citizens.

How does academic freedom apply to teaching?

According to American Association of University Professors (AAUP), faculty
members must observe their institution's policies and procedures. The freedom to
teach, however, includes the right of faculty members to select materials, determine
the approach, design the assignments, and assess student academic performance in
teaching activities for which they are individually responsible as long is it is within
the parameters of the policies and procedures.

What are the main threats to academic freedom?

Some frequent threats include:

- Pressure from donors or board members: For example, when donors push administrators not to appoint a high-profile faculty member whose views or public utterances they dislike.
- Pressure from the community when the content of teaching or research is controversial: For example, students and parents have objected to the use of nudes in an art history class.
- Legislative interference: For example, legislators pushing legislation that would restrict what can be taught about US history.

- Targeted harassment: Over the last few years, targeted online harassment of faculty
 has emerged as a significant threat to academic freedom. Fueled by websites such
 as Professor Watchlist, Campus Reform, and College Fix, campaigns of threats and
 harassment are directed against faculty members for what they are reported to have
 said in the classroom or posted on social media.
- Lack of procedural protections: Faculty members being quietly non-reappointed (non-renewed), with no reasons given.

American Association of University Professors. Retrieved 2024 August 16 from https://www.aft.org/position/academic-freedom

Academic Professionalism

United Tribes Technical College (UTTC) strives to be a collegial community where employees collaborate and share responsibilities in service of its mission. Professionalism in the field of education involves interacting with students, colleagues and other members of the community in an appropriate and respectful way that encourages a positive learning environment Accordingly, all employees are expected to treat one another in a professional manner.

The Vice President of Academic Affairs (VPAA) encourages a workplace culture where faculty and staff feel welcome to share their ideas and opinions, challenge or question decisions or policies, and are confident their ideas are heard and recognized. The VPAA supports dialogue in which asking questions, giving actionable feedback, taking advice and implementing feedback, and sharing credit for success and empowering decision-making is conducted in a professional manner.

Indicators of professionalism in education include active listening, awareness of non-verbal cues and body language, maintaining a positive attitude, and the ability to frame communication with respect to varied individual communication differences. All employees, students and other members of the UTTC community, have the right to be treated with dignity and respect. Accordingly, intimidation, berating, threatening behavior, or aggression, whether verbal, written, or physical, is not acceptable professional behavior.

Intellectual Property Policy

United Tribes Technical College (UTTC) encourages the development, writing, invention, or production of intellectual property designed to improve the productivity of UTTC

operations, to enhance the teaching and learning environment, and to contribute to the betterment of the community. Intellectual property includes but is not limited to intellectual and creative works that can be copyrighted or patented, such as literary, dramatic, musical and artistic works, computer software, multimedia presentations, and inventions.

UTTC employees and students own all rights to copyrightable or patentable independent works created by that person without college support. Unless otherwise provided in an agreement, the College owns all rights to a copyrightable or patentable work created by the person with college support. The ownership of a copyright or patent resulting from the development of intellectual property, and any rewards or recognition attributed to the copyright or patent, will be determined according to the following conditions:

Ownership resides with the employee or student if the following criteria are met:

- 1. The work is the result of individual initiative, not requested by UTTC.
- 2. The work is not the product of a specific contract or assignment made as a result of employment or enrollment at UTTC.
- 3. The work is not prepared within the scope of the employee's job duties or the student's enrollment; and
- 4. The work involves insignificant use of UTTC facilities, time, and/or other resources.
- 5. The student holds ownership in any assignment, project, paper, or thesis, automatically, without any need to register the work to obtain a copyright.

Ownership resides with the College if the above criteria are not met or if one of the following criteria applies:

- 1. The work is prepared within the scope of the employee's job duties or the student's enrollment; or
- 2. The work is the product of a specific contract or assignment made in the course of the employee's employment with the College or the student's enrollment; or
- 3. The development of the work involved significant facilities, time, and/or other resources of the College including but not limited to released time, grant funds, College personnel, salary supplement, leave with pay, equipment, or other materials or financial assistance; or
- 4. The College and the employee or student may enter into an agreement for an equitable arrangement for joint ownership, sharing of royalties, or reimbursement to the College for its costs and support. When it can be foreseen that commercially valuable property will be created, the College and the employee or student shall negotiate an agreement for ownership and the sharing of benefits prior to creation

- of the property. In all such cases, the agreement shall provide that the College will have a perpetual license to use the work without compensation to the employee or student for such use; or
- 5. If an employee is granted full or partial leave with pay (e.g., release time or educational leave) to write, develop, produce, or invent intellectual property, the employee and the College will share in any financial gain; and the College's share will be negotiated prior to the time the leave is taken.

Family Education Rights & Privacy Act (FERPA)

Under the Terms of FERPA, United Tribes Technical College has identified information that may and may not be released to those requesting it unless the student specifically requests otherwise on the form provided or by submitting written notification to the Registrar's Office.

Grades, social security numbers, ethnic backgrounds and student schedules may not be released to anyone, including the student's family members, without written consent of the student. If a student has signed a FERPA release statement, it will be available on the Registrar's Office s/drive.

Faculty and staff engage in online FERPA training on a regularly scheduled basis in order to keep current with this legislation. For more information about FERPA, please refer to the student handbook, academic catalog, or contact the UTTC Registrar's Office.

Faculty Handbook

This handbook is not intended as a replacement, or substitute, for faculty employment agreements (contracts). Instead, this document is meant to complement each faculty employment agreement by providing reference to college documents and material. This handbook is a supplement to the UTTC Employee Handbook and includes operating procedures specific to faculty and other academic personnel.

General Faculty Structure

The Vice President of Academic Affairs (VPAA) is responsible for the general oversight of the supervision, professional development and evaluation of full-time, part-time and adjunct faculty. The Dean of Instruction reports to the VPAA, oversees the Academic programs and is the immediate supervisor for academic department chairs and the CTE and WIOA (Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act) Coordinator.

UTTC faculty members are classified as follows:

- 9-month: Employees hired to work only during the academic year defined as the fall and spring semester.
- 11-month: Employees hired to work the academic year and summer session (subject to the same benefits as the 9-month employee classification).
- 12-month: Employees hired to work all year.

Part-Time and Adjunct Faculty

Instructors who teach less than 24 credit hours per academic year are considered part-time faculty. Part-time faculty members are restricted to a maximum number of work hours per week and typically earn a salary that is determined by an hourly rate calculated and compensated in a lump sum. The summer semester faculty members may be considered part-time or adjunct faculty, depending on the courses and department in which they are teaching. Part-time faculty members for the summer semester are typically 9-month exempt employees during the academic year (fall/spring semester) who are working on a Part-Time Employee Contract for the summer semester.

Adjunct employees are instructors who are paid by the number of credit hours they teach. The prefix *adjunct* identifies a faculty member whose primary place of employment is not UTTC or whose primary employment within the institution is not in a faculty capacity. The course load for an adjunct faculty member is typically 3 to 6 credits per semester.

Department Chair

The department chair is a designated faculty member within an academic department with two or more full-time faculty members who has a leadership role within the department. The department chair job duties are specifically identified on the chair/faculty job description. Chairs receive an additional \$5,000 per year, in addition to their 9-month salary, to compensate them for oversight of their department that may include ensuring continued operations during the summer months. In addition, chairs have a decreased instructional course load during the fall and spring semesters (a maximum of 12 credits each semester/24 for the academic year). If their course load exceeds 24 credits for fall/spring, department chairs will be compensated for an overload at a rate of \$715 per credit.

Department chairs are essential and significant members of UTTC leadership. They serve as a channel of communication on program, personnel and curriculum matters. They encourage and foster excellence in teaching, scholarship and professional activity and

service. The department chair supervises all department faculty, including part-time, online and adjunct faculty. This supervision includes, but is not limited to:

- Providing an environment that, within the limitations of available resources, is supportive of faculty professional activities and goals
- Submitting monthly reports, unit action plans, and other reporting requirements
- Overseeing program assessment activities
- Monitoring the timely submission of attendance and grades by the faculty in their programs
- Ensuring the faculty in their programs are submitting early alerts in a timely manner, responding to these alerts as expected, and elevating the alert levels as necessary
- Providing mentoring and mentoring structures to faculty
- Responsible for the faculty in their programs actively participating in student club activities and committees concerned with day-to-day governance of the campus
- Overseeing faculty adherence to institutional policies

The department chair is expected to seek input from department faculty in a systematic way through department meetings and the appointment of appropriate committees. The department chair is expected to seek student advice on matters of concerns to students enrolled in the program. The specific duties of the department chair shall not, however, be delegated.

Full-Time Faculty

Full-time faculty members provide a maximum of 30 credit hours of postsecondary instruction during the academic year with the academic year defined as the fall and spring semester. Faculty job duties are specifically identified on the faculty job description. All lab and shop hours will be weighted equally for credit load according to the UTTC Credit Hour Policy. If the course load exceeds 30 credits for fall/spring, full-time faculty will be compensated for an overload at a rate of \$715 per credit.

Faculty Workload

It is the intent of UTTC to implement a faculty workload process that promotes student learning and is consistent with the institutional mission. Commensurate with this goal, and vital to its achievement, is the fair and equitable treatment of faculty in a work environment that enhances creativity, innovation, and the academic freedom to develop and deliver individual course and curricula to meet the needs of our students.

Responsibilities of each faculty member include, but are not limited to:

- 1. Developing and delivering the curricula required to meet the needs of our students and the mission of UTTC
- 2. Assessing student outcomes as a basis for improving learning and maintaining the academic integrity of programs
- 3. Advising students accurately and knowledgeably for them attain their academic goals,
- 4. Maintaining timely submission of attendance and grades
- 5. Submitting early alerts in a timely manner, responding to these alerts as expected, and elevating the alert levels as necessary
- 6. Actively participating in student club activities and committees concerned with dayto-day governance of the campus, and
- 7. Maintaining proficiency in their disciplines.

UTTC recognizes the multitude of differences in types of instruction and effort required to teach highly variable curricula well. The Dean of Instruction will work with faculty on exceptions to the standard workload expectations.

Faculty Overload Policy

The first obligation of full-time members of the United Tribes Technical College (UTTC) faculty is to complete responsibilities associated with their employment agreements. Those responsibilities include but are not limited to teaching and service. These responsibilities are clearly articulated on the job description and in the Faculty Handbook. Additionally, faculty are expected to be accessible to students, participate in continuing professional development activities, attend college meetings, and serve on committees. Department Chairs determine the work assignment of individual faculty in the departments. In emergency situations, such as a faculty vacancy or late faculty resignation, the Chair may request the Vice President for Academic Affairs (VPAA) authorize additional overload course assignments.

Overloads for Teaching during Fall and Spring Semesters

Faculty members must satisfactorily perform all duties and responsibilities as part of their employment contract to be considered for an overload for teaching. Faculty members are allowed a one-course overload per academic semester, typically not to exceed 4 credit hours, as recommended by the Chair.

Overloads for Teaching during Summer Session

The full-time teaching load during the summer semester is 6 credits. Permission to teach more than 6 credits is not granted during the summer except under extraordinary

circumstances such as the late resignation of a faculty member. In all cases, department chairs determine which faculty teach during the summer months, as well as the courses taught. Permission for an overload for summer requires approval of the VPAA.

Overload Compensation

Overload compensation is determined at \$715 per credit for credits exceeding the maximum course load identified on the faculty job description.

Course Buyout

A course buyout occurs when grant funds "buy" a faculty member's release time by paying for a portion of their salary so the equivalent amount of effort can be spent working on the grant.

A "buyout" situation applies when a faculty member is granted course release time to accommodate a faculty member's work on an externally funded grant. The corresponding percentage of the faculty member's appointment is directly charged (accounted for) to the grant budget during the term of the buy-out. This is not the same as a grant supporting all or a percentage of a faculty member's annual salary. The funds must be specifically identified and budgeted as course buyout funds.

UTTC values the importance of securing external funding to support research and other grant activities and recognizes that managing grant activities can be laborious and highly time consuming. To encourage the submission of grant applications, course buyout is offered to full-time faculty who secure external grant funding.

To receive a course buyout, the principal investigator/project director must budget \$12,700 from the grant for one academic year (fall/spring) per faculty member to cover the FTE associated with teaching a course and seed the Course Buyout account. This amount is calculated based on a 15-credit teaching load; thus, 3 credits = .2 FTE. A \$50,000 salary w/27% fringe rate = \$63,500 X .2 FTE = \$12,700. The budgeted amount may be used to cover the cost (salary and fringe) associated with hiring an adjunct faculty member as needed to teach.

The principal investigator must complete the Course Buyout Request Form and submit it for approval no later than three months prior to the start of the semester to allow time for hiring an instructor for the course. The Course Buyout Request Form is available on the Academic Affairs s/drive, View folder.

Faculty Working Hours

United Tribes Technical College recognizes that faculty responsibilities often occur during the evening and weekend hours so the faculty work schedule was adopted to accommodate these after-hours duties. All full-time faculty members are required to be on campus for a minimum of 28 hours per week between 8 am and 5 pm, Monday through Friday, to meet their professional obligations as stated on the job description. The professional obligations include but are not limited to:

- Scheduled class time for both on campus and online courses
- Ten (10) office hours on campus per week at times convenient to students.
- Meetings (department meetings, advisory council meetings, All Hands, committee meetings, student club meetings, etc.)
- Student club activities
- Professional development and other trainings: The faculty working hours schedule
 does not apply to the first and last week of each semester or any other days in
 which there are no classes scheduled. Faculty are also required to be on campus for
 any scheduled events during the academic year.
- Faculty must be on campus every day, Monday through Friday, and at least until noon on Fridays.
- Release time for educational purposes or wellness are not calculated in the 28 required hours.
- Faculty will work regular hours (8 am 5 pm) Wednesday through Friday, during the Tribal Leaders Summit and first day of powwow.

Each faculty member must email their schedule to their direct supervisor at the start of each semester showing posted class schedule, office hours, committee meetings, faculty meetings, student club meetings and typical availability. If any variations occur to the schedule, and the faculty member is not able to adhere to the schedule, the faculty member must contact the immediate supervisor and follow the UTTC policy for requesting and using personal or sick leave, whichever is appropriate.

In the event a faculty member does not adhere to the expectations of an exempt faculty work schedule, the immediate supervisor will implement corrective action. Immediate supervisors may also implement corrective action if a faculty member is not getting their job duties completed as expected (e.g., grading, attendance, assessment activities). Consequences for corrective action may include, but are not necessarily limited to, the faculty member being required to report to work on campus from 8 AM – 5 PM, Monday through Friday, with one hour of unpaid time off for lunch. Employees who work the standard 8-hour day are required to clock in and out using a timecard.

Personal/Annual and Sick Leave

In general terms, faculty members are expected to be available to students and other UTTC faculty and staff between the hours of 8 am and 5 pm, Monday through Friday. Faculty are only expected to physically be on campus during the times identified on their semester schedule but must be available at other times during this time frame if an unexpected meeting is convened or some other type of issue arises that requires their attention. If a faculty member is not able to adhere to either of these conditions, they must be on approved paid leave. All UTTC employees must adhere to the policies in the UTTC Employee Handbook regarding any type of leave.

Faculty members who meet the criteria for sick or personal leave, as stated in the UTTC Employee Handbook, must contact their department chair to request the appropriate leave and complete an electronic leave slip. The sick leave request must be submitted before 8 am, and the start of the typical workday, so alternative arrangements can be made for their classes and students notified, if necessary. Personal leave must be submitted 24 hours in advance, as stated in the UTTC Employee Handbook.

Any day-long absence during the regular work week due to illness is considered 8 hours of sick leave and entered as such in the electronic time sheet. If a faculty member needs to take sick leave for part of a day, they enter the number of hours they are unavailable as sick leave in the electronic time sheet.

Personal leave is determined the same way as sick leave. Any day-long absence during the regular work week is considered 8 hours of personal leave and entered as such in the electronic time sheet.

Administrative Leave – Special Events

Administrative Leave – Special Events is a leave category for which employees who volunteer for special events (e.g., powwow and Summit) can earn paid leave. The option for accruing Special Events leave must be approved in advance by UTTC administration. There are restrictions to Special Events leave, such as the number of hours that can be accrued and the deadline for using the leave. Special events leave does not accumulate from one academic year to the next. For more information, refer to the UTTC Employee Handbook.

Part-Time Compensation Forms for Additional Contracts

Full-time teaching faculty are provided an opportunity to work on part-time contracts during the summer months that are separate from their academic year duties. Examples for summer part-time contracts include grant work, adjunct faculty, online course design and approved professional development trainings.

Supervisors initiate part-time summer contracts for faculty they supervise by submitting an Employee Selection Form (ESF) that identifies the work/training the faculty member is expected to complete. The completed form is submitted for signature approval. Once the ESF is signed and approved, it is entered into the system by the Human Resources staff. When the work/training is completed, the faculty member will complete and sign a Part-Time Compensation form and submit it to the supervisor for signature approval. It is the responsibility of the faculty member to notify their supervisor that the work has been completed or provide confirmation the work/training has been completed.

Supervisors complete and then forward all completed Part-Time Compensation forms to the Administration Assistant who collects and submits the forms to Human Resource in one email each pay period. A list of the names on the Part-Time Compensation forms is included in the body of the email for verification purposes. The Human Resources staff relay the compensation information to the Payroll Office and payment is processed. Compensation for adjunct faculty for the summer semester is paid on one lump sum, after grades are reported for the semester.

Faculty Evaluation Procedures

As specified in the UTTC Employee Handbook, all faculty members are evaluated on a regular basis in the spring of the year and prior to the distribution of the faculty employment agreements. All parties sign the annual performance evaluation, and the original is submitted to Human Resources. Additional information regarding the evaluation process, as well as the merit increase eligibility, is included on the Annual Performance Evaluation form specific to faculty.

Employment Agreements

Faculty Employment Agreements (commonly referred to as contracts) identify the annual salary (Appendix A: Faculty Salary Schedule), the length of employment, start and end dates, as well as other contractual information related to employment for full-time faculty members at UTTC.

The employment agreements for the up-coming academic year are distributed to each returning faculty member no later than the last day of the academic year. Returning faculty members have until June 1 to return the signed employment agreement to Human Resources. Failure of the faculty member to return the signed agreement on or before 5 pm CST of June 1 will be considered a voluntary resignation effective May 31. The due date to return agreements is identified on the document.

Faculty Resignations

Faculty members who resign or retire (voluntary departure) are expected to submit an electronically written statement to their immediate supervisor and UTTC Human Resources (HR) no later than April 30 of the academic year. The resigning faculty member will follow established out-processing procedures pertaining to the security and/or return of UTTC instructional resources, student files, departmental documents, and physical property (e.g., keys, supplies, equipment). Faculty members are responsible for settling outstanding debts, reimbursements and any other obligations per institutional policies.

Non-Renewal of Faculty Appointments

Faculty members who are non-renewed (involuntary departure initiated by the department) will receive a letter no later than the last day of the academic year. The letter is composed and signed by the immediate supervisor, will include the reason(s) for the non-renewal, and is sent certified mailed by HR. The non-renewed faculty member will follow established out-processing procedures pertaining to the security and/or return of UTTC instructional resources, student files, departmental documents, and physical property (e.g., keys, supplies, equipment). Faculty members are responsible for settling outstanding debts, reimbursements and any other obligations per institutional policies.

Faculty members who are non-renewed have the right to submit a written letter or email of appeal the decision to the Dean of Instruction within 5 business days of receipt of the letter. The decision of the Dean of Instruction is final.

Sabbatical Leave Policy

United Tribes Technical College (UTTC) understands the significance of having employees who are leaders in their field and endeavors to encourage innovation and creativity in our employees to ensure that UTTC remains a leader of cutting-edge products in our industry. It is important that UTTC employees who are responsible for innovation are given time to focus their creative endeavors both personally and professionally so that new ideas can continue to be generated.

Purpose

It is the policy of UTTC to allow eligible employees to take sabbatical leave to focus on self-development for a specified period of time. Sabbaticals are granted with the expectation of professional outcomes. Employees eligible for sabbatical leave will be held accountable for the activities or materials they choose to conduct or create during this leave. All intellectual property created during an employee's sabbatical leave will be deemed property of UTTC. All sabbaticals are intended to benefit both the employee and the institution. The plan for self-development should show clear benefit to the institution through capacity-building, research expansion, and/or professional development.

Eligibility

Exempt-level professional, director and executive level employees working in designated "innovative" areas such as product development, research and design may apply for a sabbatical leave after seven years of continuous full-time service. Sabbatical leave is not paid leave; the employee will not receive UTTC salary support during the period of leave. The employee may, however, be eligible for salary support from an external funding source during the time the employee is on leave.

Sabbatical leave is granted only on condition that the employee subsequently returns to UTTC for a period of further service equal to the length of the leave. If an employee does not return, at the discretion of UTTC, the employee may be required to refund all amounts paid by UTTC for the employee during the leave or as otherwise related to the leave.

After an employee has completed sabbatical leave, he or she is not permitted to reapply for sabbatical leave for a period of five years following completion of an employee's last sabbatical.

Employees on approved sabbatical leave will receive continued health benefits during the period of leave if there is an external funding source that is covering the cost of their salary. Employees on sabbatical leave are not eligible for tuition reimbursement or any sabbatical activity reimbursement.

Procedures

Eligible employees who wish to apply for sabbatical leave are required to submit a letter to their immediate supervisor describing the reason for the sabbatical and anticipated activities during sabbatical. Some examples of activities during sabbatical include continuing education, writing a book or peer-reviewed publication, or conducting focused research in the employee's particular area of expertise.

The employee's immediate supervisor will forward the proposal to the Human Resources Director who will review the submitted proposal. Sabbatical proposals will be

recommended for approval based on the UTTC's necessity to conduct such research or development, staffing needs, and any other factors deemed relevant by UTTC. The sabbatical proposal recommended for approval will be submitted to the UTTC President, who will make the final decision on requests for sabbatical leaves.

After an employee's return from sabbatical leave, the employee will be required to produce evidence of the activities conducted during this time. Failure to produce evidence of work during this period will result in the employee becoming ineligible to participate in future sabbaticals. UTTC also reserves the right to take disciplinary action against employees who fail to conduct any meaningful work or activities during this period.

Time off taken for approved Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) leave will not be counted against the employee when determining eligibility or "continuous service."

Employees on sabbatical leave will not be required to use any accrued leave during this period and are permitted to carry over all leave in the instance that the sabbatical leave crosses from one calendar year into the next. Employees will not accrue any additional leave during their sabbatical.

Employees on sabbatical who are enrolled in our group benefits plan will continue to have pre-tax deductions made from their pay during the sabbatical period if their salary is paid from an external funding source. If the employee is taking an un-paid sabbatical, the employee is responsible for the full cost of their benefits.

Employees on sabbatical leave remain employed on an at-will basis and UTTC retains the right to dismiss an employee at any time.

(Policy passed June 5, 2020)

Faculty Qualifications Policy

Determination by Credentials

In alignment with Higher Learning Commission (HLC) recommendations, UTTC identifies qualified faculty members primarily by credentials. Other factors, including but not limited to equivalent experience (tested experience), may be considered by the institution in determining qualifications. The appropriate degree, equivalent experience, or combination of education and experience for each discipline or program is defined in UTTC's Faculty Qualifications Handbook.

Professional Development for Faculty

Professional development for faculty has a direct impact on student learning. When educators discover new teaching strategies through professional development, they can go

back to the classroom and make changes to their lecture styles and curricula to better suit the needs of their students. Research by the U.S. Department of Education's Institute of Education Sciences concluded that student achievement can improve by as much as 21 percentile points because of educator participation in well-designed professional development programs (https://ies.ed.gov/ncee/rel).

A variety of professional development opportunities are offered each year. These offerings focus on teaching and learning excellence; best practices associated with curriculum, instruction, assessment, and evaluation; technology; and new ideas for designing, developing, delivering, and assessing culturally responsive instruction.

All faculty members are required to participate in ACUE courses and other professional development activities (specified on the job description and rated on annual performance evaluation). UTTC supports professional development as an allowable expense that can be paid from department budgets if it clearly benefits the faculty member's department and is approved in advance by the supervisor. Seminars, workshops, and conferences are the most common activities that incur costs.

- 1. The focus of the professional development activity must be relevant to the faculty member's position or benefit the program.
- 2. All professional development is at the discretion of the supervisor. Faculty must obtain supervisory approval before registering for a professional development opportunity.
- 3. Personal development that is not related to the faculty member's position, and conducted outside of standard working hours, does not need supervisor approval and will not be compensated.
- 4. A supervisor may require a faculty member to participate in a specific professional development training to improve an area identified as a weakness on the annual performance evaluation.
- 5. Full-time faculty are compensated for professional development/training opportunities during the summer months if it enhances their job performance. Faculty must obtain advance supervisory approval and justify how participating in the event will benefit their position or department.
- 6. The supervisor will complete the necessary forms to ensure the faculty member is compensated.
- Examples of professional development include:
 - Campus professional development at the beginning and end of each semester

- Local, regional, national conferences
- ACUE courses
- Workshops and seminars
- Completion of mandatory training programs/modules (CTE certification)

Faculty Onboarding

Onboarding is a faculty development process that continues for at least one semester. The faculty onboarding course at UTTC was designed based on input from faculty who identified areas in which they felt faculty would benefit from additional support. Successful onboarding is designed to set up every faculty member to succeed. Participation is mandatory for all new faculty and others based on recommendation from the Department Chairs.

Faculty Onboarding Course

Online and ZOOM meetings (First semester bi-weekly) (Second - monthly)

Module 1: Orientation to course

- Setting up your syllabus
- Identify course objectives, program learning outcomes (PLOs) and assessments
- Creating your schedule
- Creating a welcome letter to students
- Adding your introductory video
- Office hours Calendar update
- Assignment due dates and times

Module 2: The first two weeks of the semester

- Getting your courses set up for success
- Taking Attendance
- Early Alert with Chair
- Building Relationships

Module 3

Grading and Feedback

Module 4

- Discussions: Face to face (F2F) and online
- Online discussion forums expectations
- Using applications

Module 5

- Creating engaging learning lessons and activities
- Importing YouTube

Module 6

- Creating engaging learning lessons and activities
- Importing YouTube videos

Module 7

- Managing assessments
- Connecting Institutional Learner Outcomes (ILOs), PLOs, and objectives to the course

Module 8

- Creating video lectures
- Using videos in Google Drive or OneDrive

Academic Meetings

Academic Affairs personnel participate in four types of meetings:

All Hands Meeting: The All Hands meeting is held once per month during the academic year. Personnel from various campus departments are represented at this meeting. The focus is on communication and ensuring that all personnel are aware of initiatives happening on campus. Feedback is solicited from those in attendance to inform decision making. Minutes are taken at each meeting that document the discussions, as well as the actions resulting from the discussions. Minutes are maintained in a folder on the s/drive.

Department Meetings: All academic departments are required to hold monthly department meetings. The department chairs share information from the Academic Council meeting with department staff and discuss other relevant information regarding the program of study, student opportunities, student challenges, professional development opportunities and so on. Minutes are taken at each meeting that document the discussions, as well as the actions resulting from the discussions. Minutes are maintained in a folder on the s/drive.

Committee Meetings: Committee chairs convene the committee meetings at least once per month, and more as needed depending on committee obligations. All committees have bylaws that guide meeting processes. Minutes are taken at each meeting that document the discussions, as well as the actions resulting from the discussions. Minutes are maintained in a folder on the s/drive.

Advisory Council: Advisory council meetings consist of local and regional representatives from the industry relevant to each academic department. Meetings are held twice per year, once in the fall and once in the spring. Council members play an important role in academic programs in terms of relevancy and future employment. Minutes are taken at

each meeting that document the discussions, as well as the actions resulting from the discussions. Minutes are maintained in a folder on the s/drive.

Virtual Meetings: These conditions apply to faculty and staff who are attending UTTC meetings virtually:

If an employee is going to use Zoom to attend a meeting, the following conditions must apply:

- 1. The employee must have a computer and a reliable internet connection (phones are not allowable).
- 2. The computer must have a working microphone and camera and the camera must be turned on.
- 3. The employee's face must be present in full frame. No background noise is allowed as this is distracting to the other meeting participants.
- 4. If these conditions cannot be met, the employee must request appropriate leave.

Career & Technical Education Certification

All faculty members teaching career-technical instructional coursework will be required to earn an instructional credential from the ND Department of Career and Technical Education in a timely manner for their respective fields of study. Faculty members teaching in the following programs are expected to acquire and maintain CTE certification:

- Automotive Technology AAS
- Business Administration AS
- o Commercial Vehicle Operations Certificate
- Computer Information Systems AAS
- Criminal Justice AS
- Elementary Education AS
- Heavy Equipment Operations Certificate
- Social Work AS
- Paralegal AAS
- Sustainable Agriculture and Food Systems AAS
- Welding Technology Certificate

Documentation of certification will be submitted to the UTTC Human Resources Office upon completion and included on the Qualified Faculty Form in the faculty member's personnel file. Any costs incurred for this certification are paid by UTTC.

Library Materials

The UTTC Library provides an array of services to support faculty and their students. The librarian works with students at the reference desk, provides brief instruction on journal databases or interlibrary loan, and schedules personalized research appointments. Instructors can request in-class instruction on research, source evaluation, and citations. Physical and electronic reserve services are also available. Please address any questions to the UTTC Librarian staff located in the Education Building.

Commencement Ceremonies

Attendance at commencement ceremonies is considered one of a faculty member's regular responsibilities. These ceremonies are held at the end of the fall semester in December and the end of the spring semester in May. Academic regalia, including caps, gowns, tassels, and hoods, may be purchased through the campus bookstore or faculty members may choose to wear their own. The Graduation Task Force (comprised of faculty and staff on a rotating basis) arranges the ceremony. The task force provides details to the campus community regarding the commencement ceremonies, planning meetings, practice, announcements and so on.

Work Orders

Work orders, or help desk tickets, are submitted to request custodial, facility, and technology maintenance assistance. All UTTC employees are encouraged to submit work orders electronically and avoid sending emails requests. The work order portal is available on my.uttc.edu.

Campus Parking for Faculty

Parking at UTTC is open parking without any designated areas. Faculty members are expected to follow UTTC Safety and Security requirements and respect handicapped parking areas and park in the appropriate direction on the streets. All employees are provided a parking pass by Safety and Security that is displayed in the employee's vehicle.

Employee Identification Cards

The UTTC Safety and Security office provides college identification cards to employees. It is recommended that faculty wear employee badges for safety and customer service reasons. Students also get their student identification cards from the Safety and Security office

Key Academic Committees

UTTC recognizes the time and commitment required from committee members and appreciates the faculty members who serve on these committees. Examples of the committees most directly related to academics include the following:

Assessment of Student Learning Committee

This committee regularly reviews and discusses the on-going assessment of student learning outcomes. The committee participates in the planning and training for faculty and interested staff in the area of student learning assessment. The committee is responsible for updating the college's student learning assessment plan collaboratively with the UTTC Director of Institutional Research.

Curriculum Committee

The purpose of this committee is to review and assist with matters of curricula development and updates including new courses and programs and curricula revisions. The committee membership consists of faculty, the Registrar, and ex-Officio members. The committee serves a primary role in standardization of curricula content and numbering systems within the North Dakota University System. The Registrar is responsible for entering information approved by the Curriculum Committee into the appropriate systems.

Student Clubs

The faculty job description includes the following in the list of duties:

11. Shares student club advising responsibilities that may include evening and weekend hours.

Department chairs and other faculty are primary advisors for student clubs and members of campus committees; however, all full-time faculty, including chairs, are expected to share in the responsibilities of advising student clubs. Committee membership does not exclude faculty from this job duty.

Sharing student club advising responsibilities is fulfilled several ways. Faculty may be the primary advisor for a particular club; they might share primary advising responsibilities with another faculty member; or they might assist the primary advisor(s) with the supervision of student activities. All club participation, including the date and the activity, is documented in the department monthly report.

SECTION III: INSTRUCTIONAL PROCEDURES

One of the keys to effective instruction is creating an environment conducive to student learning. The intent is to establish policies and procedures well in advance for situations that may arise in the classroom and articulate these policies and procedures to the students, faculty and staff. Faculty should consider fully both the student's situation and the ramifications of the decision when interpreting policy. If the situation warrants, contact a supervisor for guidance on how to proceed.

Academic Integrity

Academic integrity is a fundamental principle of post-secondary education and is essential to the credibility of the education programs at United Tribes Technical College. UTTC views any act of academic dishonesty as a serious offense requiring disciplinary measures, including course failure.

As members of the academic community, students are expected to recognize and uphold academic integrity standards. To assist in maintaining this expectation, faculty should be familiar with and follow the academic integrity policy in the Academic Affairs Policies Handbook. All syllabi should refer to this policy and include the definition of academic integrity, as well as step-by-step procedures for addressing issues of academic integrity.

The most common academic integrity violations are cheating and plagiarism (any failure to document sources). Faculty members are expected to use their professional discretion for addressing cheating. If the faculty member determines a student cheated on an assignment or test, the student earns a grade of 0% on the assignment without the opportunity to re-submit the assignment or test. If two or more students are cheating (i.e. sharing an assignment that was intended to be completed individually), all students involved will earn 0% without the opportunity to re-submit the assignment or test. The student has the right to appeal the failing grade to the Vice President of Academic Affairs using the appeal process outlined in the UTTC Student Code of Conduct.

Plagiarism occurs whenever a source of any kind has not been acknowledged. Every student must understand the correct procedures for acknowledging and identifying sources of borrowed material. Citing the source of information is a skill that is introduced by the faculty members in the General Education courses (i.e., ENG 110 and ENG 120) and reinforced by all faculty in subsequent program courses that require writing assignments.

Refer to the Academic Affairs Policies Handbook for the complete policy on academic integrity.

Cancelation of Classes

Faculty members are expected to meet all scheduled classes. Occasionally, faculty members may experience a conflict between a scheduled class and another professional activity, such as attendance at a conference, or may need to cancel class due to a family emergency or illness. In such cases, it is the faculty member's responsibility to inform students and his or her immediate supervisor as far in advance as possible and arrange for another faculty member to teach the course or provide alternative activities or make-up sessions for missed classes. Those who find it necessary to be absent from class, or to cancel class, must receive prior approval from the immediate supervisor. If the faculty member does not make prior arrangements with the department chair, and does not have approval to cancel class, he or she is subject to corrective action.

Student Code of Conduct

UTTC has established the Student Code of Conduct (SCC) to promote the college mission and protect the rights of students, faculty and staff. The most current version of the SCC is contained in the Student Handbook that can be found on the UTTC website. The SCC is administered under the Campus Services division and is coordinated by the Hearing Officers, a three-member team representing Academic Affairs and Campus Services. The Hearing Officers review all SCC violations and impose sanctions as appropriate.

Students who are sanctioned have the right to appeal the decision to the Vice Presidents of Campus Services and Academic Affairs. All faculty members must be familiar with the appeal procedure articulated in the Student Handbook. The decision of the Vice Presidents in response to an appeal is final.

Classroom Behavior

In an emergency situation, such as a student verbally or physically threatening to harm others, UTTC Safety and Security will be contacted immediately at (701) 595-2963 or 911, if appropriate. In non-emergency situations involving disruptive students, faculty should refer to the Classroom Behavior policy outlined in the Academic Affairs Policies Handbook.

JICS - My.UTTC.edu

JICS, or Jenzabar Internet Campus Solution, offers faculty, staff and students a single point of access to email, budgets, courses, semester schedules, and more. The JICS at UTTC is

accessed by logging into my.uttc.edu. All faculty members have a username and password for this site.

The LMS, or learner management system, is the feature in JICS where all courses are managed.

Faculty members are required, without exception, to enter attendance on this site for each student in every course, no later than 5 pm CST on Fridays. Course assignments are entered for each course and grades are entered for the assignments. Grades are typically posted within 3-7 business days after the assignment is due. This allows faculty an opportunity to provide feedback on the assignment and allows students the ability to monitor their own attendance and grades in each one of their courses.

Faculty members are also required to provide a personalized home page for each one of their courses in JICS that include information specific to the course. Required course information is syllabus information copied to the course syllabus page, faculty office hours, as well as a personalized home page for each course.

Classroom Facilities

Faculty needing facility support for a classroom (temperature control, lighting, or furniture) should submit a work order to Maintenance. Any other types of materials needed, such as dry erase markers, erasers, and flip charts, are provided by the academic department in which the faculty member teachers. Requests for these types of supplies should be made to the department chair or supervisor.

Classrooms are assigned to classes and not to specific faculty. Classes must be taught in the classroom in which they were assigned and as identified on the semester course schedule. If a classroom is unsatisfactory, a request to change the location is made to the department chair or supervisor. The Dean of Instruction will consider the need for changing the room location before requesting a change from the Registrar's Office.

Student Attendance

Attendance is entered on a weekly basis and is due Fridays at 5 pm Central time for campus-based courses. Attendance is due Monday mornings at 8 am Central for online courses.

Referring Students for Services

Faculty members can greatly assist students by directing them to the specialized services designed to help students succeed. Faculty may encounter students who can benefit from referral to counseling services or to Disabilities Services, as well as others. There are many services available at UTTC designed to support students. It is the responsibility of all faculty members to be aware of these services and refer students to them as appropriate.

Disabilities Services

UTTC complies fully with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 and with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). Disabilities Services provides support to any student with a documented disability who chooses to identify themselves as eligible for disabilities services. Support services include assistive technology, academic coaching, extended time for tests and note taking assistance. Students with disabilities should register with the Wellness Counselor who is responsible for disabilities services at the beginning of each semester, as services do not automatically carry over from one semester to the next.

Faculty members must comply with recommendations from as long as students meet the criteria for services and the accommodations are considered "reasonable". Reasonable accommodations are modifications or adjustments to the tasks, environment or to the way things are usually done that enable individuals with disabilities to have an equal opportunity to participate in an academic program or a job (U.S. Department of Education, 2007). The accommodation cannot alter fundamental goals or outcomes of a course or lower the standard expectations of student performance.

Counseling Services

The Wellness Center provides a wide range of counseling and health service to support students as they work to reach their educational goals. A multidisciplinary team of licensed clinical social workers, licensed addiction counselors, health professionals, and others staff the Wellness Center. Faculty members must be familiar with the services offered at the Wellness Center so they can refer students for the wide variety of support services available.

The faculty members work closely with the Wellness Counselors assigned to each department. The counselors are key to providing wellness supports and are included in department staff meetings, as guest speakers in classes, and staffings with individual students.

Career Services

UTTC employs a Transfer and Career Services Coordinator who works with faculty members to help transition students from college to the workforce. Services include job shadowing, internship opportunities, mock interviews, and resume writing. The faculty members must be familiar with services available and coordinate the services to prepare the students for their careers after graduation.

Tutoring Services

Tutoring services are available to UTTC students through an online tutoring service and inperson. All General Education faculty at UTTC have tutoring hours in their weekly schedule for students in all departments. The tutoring schedule is available every semester on the UTTC website. Faculty provide additional tutoring services to the students in their programs or courses on an as-needed basis.

Brainfuse is an online tutoring service that is available to all students, both campus-based and online. Brainfuse replaced Smarthinking and is provided at no cost to students.

Tutoring and plagiarism services are introduced to students in their First Year Experience course during which they get the opportunity to upload writing assignments to the software (Turnitin). Faculty members must be familiar with the variety of tutoring services available so students can be referred as appropriate.

Breastfeeding

UTTC has adopted a breastfeeding policy that applies to students and employees. Faculty members are required to make accommodations for students who are breastfeeding. There are designated rooms in the Skills Center and Science and Technology Center.

Internships and Apprenticeships

Internships and apprenticeships are designed to enhance the educational experience of students by providing them the opportunity to alternate or intersperse periods of meaningful work related to their academic fields or areas of career interest with periods of academic study. Internships at UTTC are offered for credit and non-credit. Internships are often part-time (full-time during the summer), singular opportunities that can be paid or unpaid. Students take academic courses concurrently while participating in internships.

Apprenticeships are structured differently than internships but also provide an opportunity for students to learn job skills on site under the supervision of an experienced employee mentor.

Faculty are encouraged to include internship and apprenticeship opportunities for students. For more information, as well as potential placements, contact the Apprenticeship Coordinator.

Assessment Reports

All full-time faculty members must complete formalized assessment report forms as required by the Assessment of Student Learning Committee. Assessment processes and procedures are required for continuous improvement of teaching and learning and are used for accreditation purposes. Part-time instructors may also be required to complete these forms, as directed by their department chair. Assessment reports include formative and summative assessment strategies utilized in classes, quantitative measures of student learning collected from the assessments, and instructor reflection on teaching methods and student learning. The department chairs and Dean of Instruction are responsible for ensuring all reports and other assessment activities are conducted completely and according to schedule.

Course Syllabi

All UTTC course syllabi are created, managed, and archived using WIDS (Worldwide Instructional Design System) software. The syllabus template that is used for all courses is a consistent format that contains the course requirements, policies and procedures, regardless of different sections or instructors. All of the syllabi include the course names, numbers, descriptions and objectives or outcomes that have been approved by the Curriculum Committee.

The course syllabus is distributed to students and considered the binding contract for course policies and evaluation decisions. All the information contained in the syllabus needs to be clearly stated and communicated to students.

All faculty members are required to upload a link to the course syllabus in the LMS for each one of their classes (at my.uttc.edu). Instructors will provide a copy of the syllabus to each student during the first week of class.

Textbooks and Supplemental Materials

Faculty members are responsible for ordering textbooks and supplemental materials for their courses. Textbook orders are due April 1 for summer and fall or October 1 for spring. The Curriculum Committee must approve any changes to textbooks, including editions.

Faculty members are encouraged to request desk, or exam, copies of their textbooks from the publishers. If desk copies are unavailable, faculty will contact their immediate supervisors about purchasing the text, and supplemental materials, from the UTTC Bookstore.

Transcript Evaluations

The UTTC Transfer and Career Services Coordinator will conduct a thorough review of every course on the transferring student's transcript to identify courses that meet the student's degree requirements at UTTC. The completed evaluation is forwarded to the Registrar who approves and enters the transferred courses into the student records. The transcript evaluation form is then uploaded to a folder on the s/drive for academic advisors to retrieve.

The department chairs (and primary advisors) must review the transcript evaluation form found on the s/drive prior to registering the student to ensure all program specific courses appropriate for transfer are included. If additional courses are identified for potential transfer, the chair/primary advisor will submit a transcript evaluation form to the Registrar for review and approval. This process must be completed prior to date of Census each semester so any course changes can be made prior to the deadline.

Grading System and Grade Changes

The grading criterion is established by the Registrar and is required for all courses taught at United Tribes Technical College. The percentages, and letter grades assigned to each percentage, are as follows:

A 100% – 90%
B 89% – 80%
C 79% – 70%
D 69% – 60%
F 59% - below

Students are required to earn a grade of "C" or higher (minimum of 70%) for each course in their respective degree plans in order to fulfill the requirement for the course. Some departments require students to earn a "B" or higher in courses that prepare students for licensure, certification, etc. This requirement must be clearly stated in the syllabus for the course requiring the "B" grade, or higher.

With the utilization of the Jenzabar LMS, faculty set up grade book functions at the beginning of each semester. Faculty members will utilize the coursework functions to document students' academic progress so that students have continual access to their current grades at any given time during the semester. Training for using the LMS is available upon request to your department chair.

Midterm and final grades are computed and submitted to the Registrar's Office by the date on the academic calendar.

Once an instructor submits a grade to the Registrar's Office, it becomes a part of the student's official record. If an instructor deems it appropriate to change a grade that has been submitted to the Registrar's Office, a formal written request to do so must be submitted to the Vice President of Academic Affairs for approval. The written request must include a clear and reasonable justification for the grade change. Formal approval, if granted, will be forwarded to the Registrar's Office from the Vice President of Academic Affairs.

Grading Consequences for Late Submission

Each student is responsible for obtaining the necessary information required in the event of an absence. It is the student's responsibility to contact the instructor or one of his or her peers to obtain information concerning assignments, handouts, and any changes or announcements.

UTTC supports and fosters the student's responsibility for completing and submitting assignments on scheduled due dates and times. If an assignment is due, the student should make every effort to submit the assignment on time. Occasionally, a student may experience an unexpected life event that results in the submission of late work. Communication is the key. Instructors are more than willing to work with students in the event of an emergency if the student communicates with them before the date and time the assignment is due to make other arrangements.

Assignment due dates, late assignment deadlines, and late assignment penalties are outlined in course syllabi. Assignments not submitted by the initial deadline date will be reflected in the course grade book as a zero (0) until the assignment has been submitted. The points deducted for late work is at the discretion of the instructor.

Grading Processes and Feedback

Faculty are expected to establish and maintain high academic standards and requirements. Grading criteria should be clearly stated on the course syllabus and graded assignments must be returned to the students in a timely manner. The grading process provides sufficient feedback for student improvement and the opportunity should be afforded the student to meet with the faculty member for additional comments. Faculty are expected to include a graded assignment in the first two weeks of a course. Multiple assignments throughout the course are especially helpful to first-year students and allow faculty to identify problems early on. Assignments or projects that take more time should include a series of grades, prior to the final grade, as progress is being made so students are aware of their progress.

What constitutes effective feedback?

College students have a variety of challenges impacting their education, and sometimes faculty members can be contributing to those barriers. A spring 2023 survey by *Inside Higher Ed* and College Pulse found four in 10 students say their academic success has been negatively affected by unclear expectations from their professor and 42 percent of respondents say they want more clear expectations from instructors. One way faculty members can bridge this gap is by providing students with meaningful feedback throughout the course, painting a picture of what student success looks like in their eyes.

Defining feedback: Feedback is information given to students about their performance that can guide their future behaviors. It can help direct students to areas of progress as well as evaluate what students are not understanding and where to direct subsequent efforts.

Feedback is not considered judgment. Instead, it should uplift learners, challenge them to think differently, deepen their understanding and build their confidence.

The best feedback, according to the University of South Carolina Center for Teaching Excellence is:

- **Educative in nature.** Students should receive an explanation of what they're doing right and wrong, but overall feedback should focus on what the student is doing correctly.
- **Given in a timely manner.** Students remember feedback (and do so more positively) associated with their work when it's given immediately.
- **Sensitive to the individual.** Some students can be pushed in their academics more than others who may need gentle encouragement, and professors should vary their responses to each student's needs.

Delivering feedback: Many professors provide feedback through written remarks on individual students' work. Here are some other methods of delivering effective feedback:

- Whole-class feedback. This can be done orally during the class period or in a shared written document.
- **Peer-to-peer feedback.** Students can get familiar with an instructor's expectations through evaluating a classmate's work using the rubric. This can also benefit self-evaluation of their work.
- Audio or video feedback. Feedback delivered via audio or video can humanize the
 process, making feedback more conversational, friendly and personal. Video or
 audio feedback can support online learners, too, and give them a chance to connect
 with the faculty member.
- **One-on-one meetings.** A personal meeting provides the opportunity to expand on feedback and facilitate a dialogue with the student, posing questions about the assignment and make a plan moving forward.
- **Small group meetings.** Larger classes may be better suited for small group meetings, which require peers to evaluate each other's work and then share feedback alongside the professor, reducing some of the work of the faculty member.

Mowreader, A. (2024). *Best practices in college student feedback*. Inside Higher Ed | Higher Education News, Events and Jobs. https://www.insidehighered.com/news/student-success/academic-life/2024/03/21/best-practices-college-student-feedback

Academic Contracts

Academic contracts are a tool that is used at UTTC to help students identify specific steps for improving their grades and meeting their educational goals. Academic contracts are viewed as collaboration between the student and his or her advisor or faculty members. The contract should include what the student plans to do as well as what the faculty member will do to help the student to meet the stipulations identified on the contract.

Wellness Counselors may contribute to the contract or have a role in its execution, as appropriate.

All students who enter a semester on probation are required to sign an academic contract before they are able to register for classes. The contract includes conditions that the student on probation must be attending classes and maintain passing grades in all of his or her classes. Meetings with the student and primary advisor are scheduled and included on the contract. If the student fails to meet these conditions, the student will be withdrawn from the institution. The withdrawal does not need to take place during one of the scheduled meetings but can occur at any time the grades go below passing or excessive absences occur.

Course Evaluations by Students

Two course evaluations are completed per semester for each course. A formative course evaluation is conducted at mid-term. The feedback received from this evaluation is implemented immediately, as appropriate, and students are informed of the changes made based on their input. If it is not appropriate to make changes based on the mid-term evaluation, faculty members share the reasons with the students. This process is crucial as it demonstrates to students that the faculty members value their input and will use it to make changes in the course to increase student learning, if possible.

The summative course evaluation is conducted at the end of each semester. All faculty members are required to accompany students to a computer lab to ensure the completion of these evaluations as the results are used for course and program improvement.

Each semester, random courses are selected in which the students complete the "Teacher Evaluation by Students" survey. The purpose of this survey is to get feedback from students on explicit and implicit curriculum. The survey results for the course are included as part of the annual performance evaluation for the faculty teaching the course. The survey can be found in the Academic Affairs s/drive View folder.

Final Exam Schedule

A written exam is typically administered for every course during the final exam period at the end of each semester. The exam is given during the period specified on the final exam schedule distributed by the Registrar's Office. It is important that faculty not reschedule finals during finals week as any reschedules may interfere with another exam period. Exams are given in the classrooms where the course meets during the semester.

A faculty member may substitute a take-home final exam, or some other suitable method of determining a student's final level of achievement in the course, for the written final exam. When this option is exercised, work done in lieu of a written exam is due no later than the same time of the scheduled final exam. In a case where a course does not include a final exam, the scheduled exam period, or a part of it, is to be used for a last class meeting.

Final exams must not be administered until after the final class period each semester as identified on the academic calendar.

Independent Study

An independent study (IS) is intended for special circumstances when students need special consideration to earn credits for a course that is not otherwise available. Independent studies are not considerations for students who have failed a course and are off the recommended sequence. The IS course is graded using the same criteria as any other UTTC course.

If a student requests to take a course as an independent study, the student must request the course from the instructor who typically teaches the course. The instructor will decide if the course is appropriate for independent study and determine if he or she is available to instruct the course. If the course is appropriate, and the instructor is available to teach it, the instructor will complete the Independent Study Contract with the student and submit it to the Department Chair for approval. The Department Chair will review the request for an independent study and, if he or she approves, will sign the contract. The Dean of Instruction must also sign to approve the contract, which is then forwarded to the Registrar's Office.

Faculty members are compensated at the rate of \$715 per Independent Study Course, except when assigned as part of a full-time teaching load. The faculty member is not eligible for overload compensation for an Independent Study course if the additional credits result in an overload.

Contact Hours (Credit Hour Policy)

Fifteen (15) contact hours are required for every credit offered over the course of the semester. This translates to a 3-credit course meeting 45 hours during the semester and courses are scheduled accordingly. For example, a 3-credit hour class must meet a minimum of 3 hours per week.

Certain Career & Technical Education courses are required to meet for additional hours per week. An example of this is a 3-credit course in the automotive degree plan that meets for 18 hours per week (3 credits x 6 hours for each credit). For more information, refer to the Credit Hour Policy in the Academic Affairs Policies Handbook.

Office Hours

Regular office hours for faculty are necessary to be accessible to students and colleagues. Each faculty member's schedule of office hours will be posted in a prominent physical location and on all course syllabi. Office hours are a time set aside each semester by faculty that ensure the faculty member is in the office at that time and available to meet with students. Committee meetings and other duties are not scheduled during office hours. All UTTC faculty schedule a minimum of 10 office hours each week and must be scheduled at times convenient for students.

Classroom Implications of the Privacy Act

All information provided to faculty about students should be considered private and confidential. Instructors must not post students' grades in a public place. Students should use JICS or request a hard copy from the Registrar's Office to review their midterm or final grades.

Field Trips

Faculty members are encouraged to plan field trips that are appropriate for their courses and will contribute to the knowledge or skill level of the participating students. A transportation request form must be filled out with an account number and approved two weeks prior to an academic field trip if using college vehicles. For more information about transporting students in private vehicles, contact the Safety and Security Director.

When an academic field trip requires students to be absent from other classes, faculty will send an email to the students' other instructors and request permission for students to be absent from other classes. Faculty are encouraged to work cooperatively; however, faculty are not required to make accommodation for students absent from their classes because of an activity in another class. Faculty members who schedule academic field trips are expected to provide an appropriate alternative assignment for those students who are unable to participate.

Curricular Changes

The UTTC Curriculum Committee and the Vice President of Academic Affairs have approved all course and program curriculum at UTTC. The Curriculum Committee approves any and all changes to the curriculum. Department chairs are responsible for accurate printed and published curriculum materials (e.g. college catalog, webpage, department brochure, recruiting flyers) that include course names, numbers, descriptions and credit hours.

For consumer information purposes, the UTTC website maintains the most current information about degree plans and coursework.

Cell Phone Usage

In general, faculty members are strictly prohibited from having their cell phones in class during instructional time. Students' cell phones will be limited to silent or vibrate mode during class time and meetings. Instructors reserve the classroom management privilege to restrict cell phone usage as specified on course syllabi and for classroom activities, guest presentations, and during tests. For parental or family emergency situations, faculty members and students will inform others in the classroom about the potential need for using personal cell phones for accommodating such situations.

Academic Advising & Registration

UTTC faculty members are expected to serve as academic advisors. During every semester, registration will be held for the following semester. Faculty advisors are expected to advise students and assist with registration before and during each semester until graduation. Faculty advisors should treat their role as an important part of academic success and maintain a professional commitment to providing quality advising. Faculty advisors are expected to meet with their respective students no less than three times per semester.

UTTC employs a First Year Advisor in addition to the faculty advisors. The First Year Advisor advises first year students (individually or in small groups), particularly those who arrive on campus during the summer months, with degree planning and course selection. When department chairs return in August, it is their responsibility to ensure the students are registered for the appropriate classes and make any necessary changes.

The First Year Advisor will work with each student individually to create an Academic Success Plan that will be shared with faculty advisors. Information and guidance for academic advising can be found in the UTTC Academic Advising Handbook.

SECTION IV: ACADEMIC POLICIES

New and revised academic policies need to be considered on an on-going basis to address changing accreditation, certification, and administrative needs related to academic activities. Department chairs will present draft policies that have been proposed at their department meetings for consideration to the Dean of Instruction who will forward them to the Vice President of Academic Affairs (VPAA). The VPAA will secure the appropriate approvals for any new policies recommended by consensus.

For a complete listing of academic policies, refer to the Academic Affairs Policies Handbook.

APPENDIX A: Faculty Salary Schedule (2024)

Table 2. Academic Affairs				
Position Title	Status	Minimum	Midpoin	Maximum
			t	
Faculty – Bachelors	Exempt	\$47,500	\$53,462	\$61,977
Faculty – Masters	Exempt	\$50,000	\$56,275	\$65,239
Faculty – Doctorate/CTE	Exempt	\$56,000	\$63,029	\$73,067
Faculty – STEM/IRRC – Masters	Exempt	\$58,000	\$65,280	\$75,677
Faculty – STEM/IRRC – PhD	Exempt	\$64,000	\$72,033	\$83,506

• Faculty members who believe their salary has been calculated in error must notify the HR Director.

Overload, Adjunct and Part-Time Faculty

An overload is defined as exceeding 30 credits for 9-month full-time faculty and 24 credits for department chairs for the academic year (fall and spring semesters). Faculty members who teach an overload are compensated at the rate of \$715 per credit. Payment is processed in the spring, at the end of the academic year. Compensation for independent study courses is calculated separately and the credits are not included in a faculty member's course load.

Refer to the Faculty Overload Policy included within this document for more information.

Adjunct Faculty Compensation

Adjunct faculty are instructors who are hired to teach a course, are not full-time UTTC faculty, and are compensated by the number of credit hours they teach. Adjunct faculty will have the option of being paid in one or two lump sums during the fall and spring semesters and one lump sum for the summer semester.

Adjunct Faculty:

- 1. Individuals who meet the credential requirements for teaching the course
- 2. Duties: teaching only
- 3. Teaching load: up to nine (9) credit hours per semester
- 4. No benefits
- 5. Compensation: \$715 credit hour

Part-Time Faculty Compensation

Part-time faculty members are typically employed as full-time faculty during the academic year and teach a course, or courses, during the summer semester. Part-time faculty are compensated for the summer semester using a formula that uses an hourly rate derived from the faculty member's 9 month contracted compensation for the current fiscal year divided by 1,560 hours. The hourly rate is multiplied by the total number of hours worked during the summer semester and a lump sum amount is established. The total number of hours will be defined prior to the summer and will not exceed the faculty's monthly salary during the regular 9 month contracted period (OMB Regulations 2 CFR 220 Cost Principles). Part-time faculty members are not eligible to use or accrue leave nor do they earn holiday pay.

Online Course Development Compensation

Faculty must receive approval from the Dean of Instruction prior to online course modifications for development:

- New online course development Faculty will receive compensation of \$500 per credit to develop a new course for online delivery that has not been previously offered
- Full redesign of an online course Faculty will receive compensation of \$300 per credit to redesign an existing online course that has undergone major content changes (e.g. new software, new course objectives, new assignments, major restructure of content).
- Faculty will not be compensated for updating an existing online course when a new text edition is adopted (new edition, same text).